
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

OCTOBER 1, 2012 
 

 



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Public Hearing and Action:

12-16 Case Analysis 4
12-16 Site Plan 11

Consideration and Action:
08-45 Case Analysis 12
08-45 Applicant Request 13

Consideration of Lease Agreement with College of the
Albemarle for the Regional Aviation and Technical Training
Center in Maple.

Lease Agreement 14
Recommendation of award of bid for COA Apron

COA Apron Bids 26
Appointment to Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District Advisory
Board

Board 28
OS Advisory Board Appt Form 29

Approval of ABC Board Travel Policy pursuant to 18B-
700(g2)which is the same as the County Travel Policy

Travel Policy 30
Firemen's Relief Fund - Moyock VFD

Firemens Relief - Moyock VFD 40
Budget Amendments

Budget Amendment 41
Approval of Change Order #1 for $6,980 for the Currituck
Community Park Roads & Infrastructure

Community Park Roads CO #1 46
Approval of September 17, 2012 Minutes

September 17 Minutes 47
Budget Amendment

Budget Amendment 62

1



Document last changed: 10/2/2012 9:40 AM 

 

REVISED 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 

 Date: Monday, October 01, 2012 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

7:00 pm Call to Order 

 

A) Invocation 

B) Pledge of Allegiance 

C) Approval of Agenda 

D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 

Public Hearings 

 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-16 Farms and Timberland, Inc.:  
Request for conditional zoning from Agricultural (A) to Conditional District-
Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) of  55.82 acres in Moyock on the south 
side of Baxter Lane, Tax Map 9, Parcels 25C, 25D, 25E, 25F, and 25G, 
Moyock Township. 

B) Consideration and Action: PB 08-45 Estates at Carova Beach: Request 
for a preliminary plat extension to replat 20 existing lots into 28 residential 
lots in Carova Beach, Fruitville Township. 

New Business 

 

A) Consideration of Lease Agreement with College of the Albemarle for 
the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center in Maple. 

B) Recommendation of award of bid for COA Apron 

C) Consent Agenda: 

1. Approval of $12,000 equipment for the Knotts Island Fire 
Department, 6 portable radios with 1 gang charger, 6 speaker mic's 
and a plug fee. 

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
2

dembrey
Typewritten Text



Document last changed: 10/2/2012 9:40 AM 

 
2. Approval of ABC Board Travel Policy pursuant to 18B-

700(g2)which is the same as the County Travel Policy 

3. Approval of Dominion Power Right of Way Agreement for Maple 
Commerce Park 

4. Firemen's Relief Fund - Moyock VFD 

5. Budget Amendments 

6. Approval of Change Order #1 for $6,980 for the Currituck 
Community Park Roads & Infrastructure 

7. Approval of September 17, 2012 Minutes 

8. Request DOT to add Trenor Lane in Currituck Woods Subdivision 
to the State System 

D) Commissioner’s Report 

E) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Budget Amendment 

Adjourn 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
3



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 1 of 7 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: October 1, 2012 

PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 
 
ITEM:   PB 12-16  Farms & Timberland, Inc. request for conditional zoning from 

Agricultural (A) to Conditional District-Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) of 
55.82 acres in Moyock on the south side of Baxter Lane.  
 

LOCATION: Moyock: Baxter Lane, Moyock Township. 

TAX ID: 0009-000-025C-0000 
 0009-000-025D-0000 
 0009-000-025E-0000 
 0009-000-025F-0000 
 0009-000-025G-0000 
 
OWNER:  Farms & Timberland, Inc. 
   2225 Spinnaker Circle 
   Virginia Beach, VA  23451 
 
APPLICANT:  Eddie Hyman 
   Hyman & Robey 
   PO Box 339  
   Camden, NC  27921 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Current Zoning New Zoning 
NORTH: Low Density Residential/Farmland A  AG 
SOUTH Woodland/Low Density Residential/open 

space 
LM/R LI/SFM 

EAST:  Low Density Residential/Farmland R/A SFM/AG 
WEST: Farmland A AG 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Rural within the Moyock 

subarea. 
 

Areas designated as Rural are intended to provide for agriculture, 
forestry, and other allied uses traditionally associated with a rural 
area.  With respect to residential development, Rural areas allow for a 
maximum density of 1 unit per 3 acres and would be served by on site 
well and septic.   
 
The policy emphasis of the Land Use Plan is for the Moyock subarea to 
properly manage the increased urban level of growth that this area is 
sure to experience.  All four land use classifications are included in the 
Moyock subarea.  The existing environmentally sensitive areas that 
cannot support higher density and do not have access to services are 
classified as either Conservation or Rural areas. Residential 

4



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 2 of 7 

development densities should be limited to 1-2 units per acre where 
onsite wastewater is proposed and other county services are limited.  In 
areas where central sewer is proposed or existing, additional services 
are available and the character of the surround areas supports it, 
higher densities ranging from 3-4 units per acre could be considered 
through the use of overlay zones.  
 
The following Land Use Plan policy statement supports the request: 
 
POLICY HN3:  Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of 
residential development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional 
suburban sprawl: 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, 

preserving permanently dedicated open space and often employ 
on-site or community sewage treatment.  These types of 
developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, 
Rural, and to a certain extend the Limited Service areas identified 
on the Future Land Use Plan Map. 

 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 
NEW ZONING: Agricultural (AG)    
 
PROPOSED ZONING:  Conditional District – Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) 
  
CURRENT USE: Woodland 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 55.82 Acres 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The 1974 Official Zoning Map zoned the property RA-20. 

The 1989 Official Zoning Map zoned the property A.    
 
UTILITIES:   An existing four inch water line along Baxter Road serves this property.  

The applicant is proposing a six inch waterline extension.  Individual on-
site septic systems are proposed for the individual lots.      

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The property is accessed by Baxter Lane, a paved state maintained 

road. 

FLOOD ZONE: The property is located in a Shaded X flood zone (500-year 
floodplain) and AE (BFE 5.4’) flood zone. 

 
WETLANDS: The US Army Corps of Engineers identified no jurisdictional 404 

wetlands or waters on the property (January 15, 2010). 
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils Map indicates the property contains Roanoke 

and Augusta soils.  The Roanoke soils (approximately 52.4 acres) are not 
suitable for on-site septic, and the Augusta soils are considered marginal. 

 
PROPOSED DENSITY: 0.64 units per acre based on the development site.   
 

5



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 
PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 

1. The proposed use is a 36-lot single family subdivision having a minimum size of 
40,000 square feet and an overall density of 0.64 dwelling units/acre. 

2. Site built single family homes. 
3. The extension of a 6” water line and arrangements to ensure improvements of the 

road to the county property. 
a. OPTION 1:  Bring a 6” water line from Moyock Landing Dr. north across the 

property owned by Currituck County through this tract to make a loop connection 
with the 4” water line at Baxter Lane.   

b. OPTION 2:  Extend the existing 6” water line from the railroad tracks on Baxter 
Lane to the site.  This option will be a dead end line. 

 
COMMUNITY MEETING: 

A community meeting was held July 25, 2012 at 7:00 pm at the Moyock Library.  The 
neighborhood concerns include the unknown maintenance responsibilities of interconnected 
roads, stormwater impacts, and potential reduced water pressure. 

 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

The rezoning request is from Agricultural (A), a district established in the current/old UDO, to 
Conditional District – Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM), a newly established district of the 
new UDO.  Although the 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the property as Rural, the proposed 
request could be considered consistent with the policy emphasis for the Moyock subarea 
based on the following: 
1. The property is located adjacent to Full Service classification. 
2. The proposed development will provide street interconnection from Baxter Lane to the 

county property located in Shingle Landing development and the adjacent property 
located to the east (n/f Jarvis & Dunstan). 

3. Utility infrastructure (six inch water line) will be extended to the property and within 
the proposed development. 

4. The property does not contain environmentally sensitive areas (404 wetlands). 
 
Outstanding Staff Concerns/Considerations: The conditional zoning process provides an 
opportunity for an applicant to propose use limitations or development conditions that ensure 
development proposals are consistent with the policies set forth in adopted plans.  The 
following staff concerns/considerations could be appropriately addressed through the 
conditional zoning process: 
1. The existing water line along Baxter Road (east of the railroad) is a four inch line and 

does not meet the minimum utility requirements.  Upgrading the existing water line to a 
six inch line would improve the development potential for properties along Baxter 
Road, but the upgrade would not loop or interconnect.   

2. Currituck County has not authorized or approved a water line extension through open, 
undeveloped public property.  The proposed extension would not be placed within a 
road right-of-way. 

3. The existing vegetation (percentage) within the open space should be retained to 
reduce the maintenance burden on the association.   

 
 

6



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 4 of 7 

The TRC recommends approval of the request to rezone 55.82 acres from Agricultural (A) to 
Conditional District – Single Family Mainland (CD-SFM) provided the outstanding concerns and 
considerations can be addressed and agreed to by the applicant. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 12-16 with staff recommendations and due to 
its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan. 

7



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 5 of 7 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (9/11/12) 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the intention for recreation is. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated there will be a trail around the perimeter of the development.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about the interconnectivity between Shingle Landing and this development. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated the residents of Shingle Landing dislike for interconnectivity between them and 
development, so it has been remapped and will provide interconnectivity up to the county 
property.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the lots will be clear cut. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated they will try to save as much as they can around the perimeter of the 
development.  
 
Mr. Turner stated he is at the end of the line for water and it is not that good. Mr. Turner asked 
how they can fix it and he is concerned with the water pressure which is at a minimal now. 
 
Ms. Voliva stated the water department can check into it; and an analysis of the water system will 
be done. 
 
Mr. Hyman explained what will be done to improve water quality and pressure. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approved PB 12-16 with staff recommendations and due to its 
consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public 
interest and promotes orderly growth and development. Mr. Clark seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
. 
 
 
 

8



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 
 

9



 
PB 12-16 Farms & Timberland, Inc. 

Conditional Zoning 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

10



EXISTING MOYOCK LANDING DRIVE - 50' R/W

PROPOSED STREET 50' R/W

PROPOSED STREET - 50' R/W

MOYOCK TOWNSHIP

CURRITUCK  COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

SOLUTIONS FROM THE GROUND UP

150 US Hwy 158 E.

PO Box 339

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 338-2913

(252) 338-5552 fax

www.hymanrobey.com

License C-0598

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

EXHIBIT

1

Project #:

Drawing #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Approved:

Date:

Sheet #:

Scale:

REVISIONS:

KEY PLAN:

120083

120083 EXHIBIT

JAM / TLF / NMR

TLF

ETH

06/28/2012

1 OF 1

1" = 200'

NUM. DATE DESCRIPTION

LEGEND

N

CONDITIONAL

REZONING

EXHIBIT

FOR

FARMS &

TIMBERLAND, INC.

BEING

PARCEL THREE PLAT CAB.

M, SLIDE 103 AND

D.B. 1209, PG. 263

N

BA
XT

ER
 L

AN
E 

(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
W

ID
TH

' R
/W

)

VICINITY MAP

BAXTER LANE - SR 1229 (60' R/W)

11



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 
 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: September 21, 2012 
 
Subject:  Estates at Carova Beach, Preliminary Plat Extension 
 
 
On September 8, 2009, the Board of Commissioners  voted to approve the preliminary 
plat/special use permit for Estates at Carova Beach to replat 20 existing lots into 28 
residential lots in Carova Beach, Fruitville Township.  The preliminary plat/special use permit 
approval was due to expire on September 8, 2011.  The North Carolina General Assembly 
passed a law that suspended the vesting period for development approvals that were valid at 
any time during January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010.  With the law in effect the 
preliminary plat/special use permit expiration date is January 1, 2013.   
 
On September 20, 2012 the engineer, Mark Bissell, submitted a request for a two year 
preliminary plat/special use permit extension of the subdivision (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 10, Section 10.3.4 and Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the 
Board of Commissioners may grant an extension of the preliminary plat/special use permit one 
time for a period of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire January 1, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The developer has proceeded with due diligence to move this project forward 

and has all local, state, and federal permits and authorizations to begin 
construction of the three sections authorized by the special use permit. 

 
3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  

Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   
a. There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   

 
 

 
 
 

 

12



13



1 
 

 
 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
CURRITUCK COUNTY  
LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE COLLEGE OF THE ALBEMARLE 
 

FOR THE APPROXIMATELY 40,500 SQUARE FOOT 
PREMISES AT AIRPORT ROAD, MAPLE, NORTH 

CAROLINA 
 
 

14



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Recitals................................................................................................................................3 
 
Section 1 - Demise of Premises........................................................................................4 
 
Section 2 – Term ................................................................................................................4 
 
Section 3 – Rent..................................................................................................................4 
 
Section 4 - Construction of the College Facility……………………………………..5 
 
Section 5 – New Construction and Alterations on Premises ......................................5 
 
Section 6 – Use of Premises..............................................................................................5 
 
Section 7 – Acceptance of Premises in AS IS Condition.......................................... 5-6 
 
Section 8 – Possession.......................................................................................................6 
 
Section 9 – Rights to Use Premises and Adjacent Property ........................................6 
 
Section 10 – Continuous Operation of the Premises as a Campus of COA.......... 6-7 
 
Section 11 – COUNTY’s Right to Terminate Without Cause .....................................7 
 
Section 12 – No Assignment; No Leasehold Financing...............................................7 
 
Section 13 – Building Maintenance and Utilities…………………………………..7-8 
 
Section 14 – Covenants of COA………………………………………………………...8 
 
Section 15 – Damage by Fire or Other Casualty ....................................................... 8-9 
 
Section 16 – Condemnation .............................................................................................9 
 
Section 17 – Default…………………………………………………………………...9-10 
 
Section 18 – Release and Indemnity of the COUNTY……………………………10-11 
 
Section 19 – Miscellaneous.............................................................................................11 
 
Pre-Audit Certification...................................................................................................12 

15



3 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY  
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the _____ day of 
______________________, 2012, by and between CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH 
CAROLINA (“the COUNTY”) and the TRUSTEES of the COLLEGE OF THE 
ALBEMARLE (“COA”) pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §115-15.1 and as approved by the State 
Board of Community Colleges.  
 
 R E C I T A L S: 
 
A. COUNTY and COA have determined to cooperate in a plan to construct and equip a 

building for COA’s aviation and technical training program, (the “College Facility”), which 
has found to be necessary and desirable to provide for improved higher education in the 
County. 
  

B. COUNTY owns the site on which the College Facility will be located, (the “College Site”).   
 
C.       COUNTY proposes to lease the College Facility, (the   “Premises”), to COA and COA has 
                 determined to lease the Leased Property from   COUNTY.         
 
D. COUNTY and COA contemplate that COA and its students and employees will be entitled 

to make certain uses of COUNTY’s property located adjacent to the Premises and that 
COUNTY’s invitees and licensees will be entitled to make certain uses of the leased 
Premises, as set forth herein.  

 
E. COUNTY and COA by execution and delivery of this Lease Agreement desire to set forth 

their mutual agreements and understandings with respect to leasing of the Premises by 
COA, operation and use of Premises, and various matters relating thereto. 

 
         NOW, THEREFORE IN CONSIDERATION of rents to be paid by COA hereunder, the 
mutual promises and agreements contained herein, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, COUNTY and COA hereby 
agree as follows: 
 
1. Demise of Premises.  COUNTY does hereby lease, demise and let unto COA and COA 

does hereby accept subject to the covenants and agreements hereinafter expressed, those 
certain premises to be situated in a building constructed by COUNTY pursuant to the terms 
of this Lease which shall be known as the College of the Albemarle Regional Aviation and 
Technical Training Center, (the “Building”), at the Currituck County Regional Airport in the 
community of Maple, North Carolina, Currituck County, North Carolina, as more 
particularly shown on Exhibit A, (the “Premises”), which Premises shall consist of a total of 
approximately 40,500 square feet.  On or before the Commencement Date, County shall 
measure the Rentable Area of the Premises, and COUNTY and COA shall amend this Lease 

16



4 
 

if necessary to reflect any discrepancy in the size of the Premises disclosed by COUNTY’s 
measurement of the Premises by COUNTY’s architect.  The Premises also includes the right 
to use in common with others the Common Area as described below.   TO HAVE AND TO 
HOLD the Premises, subject to the limitations, terms and conditions herein contained, for 
the term and at rentals herein provided. 

 
 As used herein, the term “Common Area” shall mean all areas and facilities not 

appropriated to the exclusive occupancy of COA, including parking areas, sidewalks, 
pedestrian ways, driveways, signs, drainage ways and systems, service delivery facilities, 
common utility facilities and all other areas established on COUNTY’s property adjacent to 
the Premises.   

 
2. Term.  The term of this Lease shall commence effective the date on which COUNTY 

receives a certificate of occupancy for the Building and shall continue for a period of eight 
(8) years thereafter (the “Initial Term”).  Thereafter, COA may, at its option, renew this 
lease for an additional eight (8) year term provided written notice is given to COUNTY at 
least six months prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If renewed beyond the Initial 
Term, the term of this Lease shall automatically renew for successive eight (8) year renewal 
terms unless: (i) COA is in default at the expiration of the Initial Term (or at the expiration 
of any subsequent eight (8) year renewal term); or (ii) either COUNTY  or COA has 
provided to the other a notice of non-renewal which notice of non-renewal must be provided 
no later than thirty-six months prior to the expiration of the Initial Term (as to the first eight 
(8) year renewal term) or thirty-six months prior to the expiration of any current eight (8) 
year renewal term (as to all subsequent renewal terms).  The parties intend that this Lease be 
a perpetual lease automatically renewing for eight (8) year renewal terms in perpetuity 
unless COA is in default or unless one of the parties elects in its discretion not to renew as 
set forth in the immediately preceding sentence or unless COUNTY exercises its option to 
terminate as provided in Paragraph 10 below.  During each eight (8) year renewal term, all 
obligations and agreements of COUNTY and COA set forth herein with respect to the Initial 
Term shall continue to apply except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  In the event 
that the Initial Term or any renewal term is not renewed pursuant to this paragraph, then, 
upon the expiration of the Initial Term or the renewal term as the case may be:  (i) this Lease 
shall terminate; (ii) title and possession to the Premises and to all other improvements 
thereon constructed by COA shall automatically be vested in COUNTY without further 
action and without the payment of any compensation or other amount by COUNTY except 
as provided in Paragraph 10 below; and (iii) all right, title and interest of COA with respect 
to the Premises and any other improvements shall cease and terminate.   

 
3. Rent.   COA has paid to COUNTY total rent of $40.00 for the Initial Term and shall pay 

$1.00 for each year of each Renewal Term. The total annual rent for the Initial term shall be 
paid in full in advance contemporaneously with the execution and delivery of this Lease.  
The total annual rent of reach renewal term shall be paid in full in advance within thirty (30) 
days of the commencement of each renewal term.  All rental payments shall be made to 
COUNTY at its offices 153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204, Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
or at such other address as COUNTY may direct. 

 

17



5 
 

4. Construction of College Facility.  COUNTY, at COUNTY’s own cost and expense shall 
perform all work, provide all labor, furnish all new materials, and obtain all certificates and 
permits necessary and desirable to construct an aviation and technical training center in 
accordance with the drawings and specifications entitled “Regional Aviation & Technical 
Training Center, Currituck County, Currituck, North Carolina” by MBAJ Architecture dated 
September 22, 2011 which drawings and specifications are incorporated herein by reference.  
COA shall be responsible for the cost of furnishings, equipment, material and any other 
nonfixture item necessary for COA’s intended use of the Premises. 

 
5. New Construction and Alterations on Premises.  COA may construct upon the Premises 

major interior structural alterations or changes only with the express written permission of 
COUNTY.  With respect to any major interior alterations or changes on the Premises, COA 
agrees as follows: 

 
(a) COA shall submit the Plans and Specifications to COUNTY for its review.  Should 

County wish to suggest any changes, it shall notify COA in writing promptly of such 
changes. 

 
(b) COA shall cause any improvements to the Premises to be built and performed in 

accordance with the Plans and Specifications as the same may be amended but only 
with the prior notification to COUNTY and in accordance with all laws, ordinances, 
codes and regulations applicable thereto.  COA shall be responsible for obtaining all 
governmentally required authorizations, permits and approvals as may be necessary in 
connection with construction of any improvements to the Premises. 

 
(c) COA shall not permit any liens of any kind to attach to the Premises arising from or 

associated with any work performed at the Premises and if any lien is filed against the        
Premises as the result of such construction or as the result of any action of COA, COA 
shall promptly either (i) pay and discharge the item, or (ii) provide a bond against the       
lien sufficient to permit the lien to be discharged of record as permitted by law.  In the  
 event that COA fails to remove or discharge any such lien or to post a bond against 
such lien by a date specified by COUNTY, COUNTY may do so at its option and 
COA shall reimburse COUNTY upon demand for all costs and expenses incurred by 
COUNTY in removing or discharging or bonding against such lien. 

 
6. Use of Premises. COA shall be entitled to use the Premises only as a site for its Currituck 

County Center.  At all times during the Initial Term and any renewal term COA shall 
comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, and legal requirements applicable to the Premises 
and to COA’s use thereof. 

 
7. Acceptance of Premises in AS IS Condition.  COA acknowledges that on the 

Commencement Date COUNTY shall deliver the Premises to COA and that COA has made 
such examinations, inspections, surveys, environmental assessments and evaluations of the 
Premises including all buildings, fixtures, and personal property located thereon, the title 
thereto, the physical condition thereof and the zoning and other regulations applicable 
thereto as COA has deemed appropriate or necessary and COA agrees that it is accepting 

18



6 
 

possession of the Premises in its AS IS, WHERE IS condition with all faults. COUNTY 
makes no representation or warranty of any kind with respect to the Premises whether 
express or implied and COUNTY shall be under no obligation of any kind to take any action 
with respect to Premises, except as required as part of North Carolina N.C. Gen. Stat.           
§§115D-32 and 115D-33. Provided, however, COA is not and shall not be considered as the 
responsible party as to any condition preexisting COA’s occupancy of the Premises, 
including but not limited to any pre-existing environmental condition, yet excepting any 
condition that COA, through negligent act or omission after its occupancy of the Premises, 
has contributed to the existence or expansion thereof. 

 
8. Possession. Possession of the Premises shall be delivered to COA on the Commencement 

Date.  COUNTY shall, however, have the right to enter upon the Premises, with the prior 
notification to COA and in a manner when minimal interference with COA’s operations will 
occur, for the purposes of inspecting the same, making such uses thereof as are provided for 
herein, and for performing its obligations hereunder.   

 
9. Rights to Use Premises and Adjacent Property.   The COUNTY and COA shall have the 

respective right and license during the Initial Term and each renewal term to make the 
following uses of the Premises and contiguous COUNTY property: 

 
(a) COUNTY shall have the right and easement to utilize parking spaces on the Premises 

for activities on contiguous County property. 
 
(b) COA shall have the right and easement to utilize parking spaces on the County’s 

contiguous property for activities. 
 

(c) Any rights granted COA herein for the use of COUNTY’s contiguous property shall 
extinguish upon any divestment of the adjacent property by the COUNTY. 

 
10. Continuous Operation of the Premises as a Campus of COA .  COA shall continuously 

operate the Premises at all times during the Initial Term and during each renewal term as an 
educational campus of its main facility for Currituck County.  In the event that COA at any 
time during the Initial Term, or any renewal term, discontinues its operation of the Premises 
as an educational campus as contemplated herein and does not resume the operation of the 
Premises as an educational campus within thirty (30) days following written notice from 
COUNTY, then COUNTY may, at its option, terminate this Lease. Upon any such 
termination:  (i) title to the Premises, including but not limited to any buildings, fixtures, and 
all other improvements located on the Premises (excluding any technical equipment 
purchased by or donated to COA that becomes attached to the Premises, such as smart 
boards, projection equipment, viewing screens, etc., hereinafter referred to as “Technical 
Fixtures”) shall immediately, automatically, and without further action vest in COUNTY; 
(ii) the Premises, including but not limited to any fixtures and all other improvements but 
excluding Technical Fixtures shall automatically and without further action become the 
property of COUNTY without the payment by COUNTY of any compensation to COA of 
any kind; and (iii) all right, title and interest of COA with respect to the Premises, including 
but not limited to any fixtures and any other improvements shall cease and terminate. Upon 

19



7 
 

any termination pursuant to this provision, COUNTY may elect to require COA to remove 
any fixtures or other improvements by COA (or such portions thereof as COUNTY may 
require) and to take all actions necessary to return the Premises to the condition it was in 
prior to the installation of such fixtures or other improvements as provided in Paragraph 4 
above. 

 
11. COUNTY's Right to Terminate Without Cause.    At any time after the expiration of the 

Initial Term, COUNTY may, at its option and without cause, terminate this Lease.  In order 
to exercise this option to terminate, COUNTY shall provide to COA written notice of 
COUNTY’s election to terminate.  Any termination of this Lease by COUNTY pursuant to 
this Paragraph 11 shall be effective on such date designated by COUNTY in its notice of 
termination provided such termination date is at least two (2) years after the date COUNTY 
delivers the notice of termination to COA.  Upon the effective date of any termination of this 
Lease pursuant to this Paragraph 11 then: (i) this Lease shall terminate; (ii) title to the 
Premises, including any improvements and fixtures, other than Technical Fixtures, on the 
Premises constructed and installed by COA will automatically and without further action vest 
in COUNTY and the Premises, including any improvements and fixtures, other than 
Technical Fixtures shall automatically and without further action become the property of 
COUNTY; and (iii) all right, title and interest of COA with respect to the Premises, including 
any improvements and fixtures, except Technical Fixtures, shall cease and terminate.  

 
12. No Assignment; No Leasehold Financing.  COA may not assign its leasehold estate under 

this Lease in whole or in part or assign to others its duties hereunder. COA may not 
mortgage, encumber, or grant a security interest in its leasehold estate created hereby or 
mortgage, encumber, or grant a security interest in the Premises, including any other 
improvements or fixtures constructed or installed by it upon the Premises.  COA may, but 
only with the prior written approval of COUNTY which approval may be withheld by 
COUNTY in its reasonable discretion, sublease a portion of the Premises in whole or in part 
to a third party acceptable to COUNTY provided such third party utilizes the subleased 
portion of the Premises only for such purposes as may be acceptable to COUNTY in its 
reasonable discretion. In the event of an approved sublease of any portion of the Premises, 
COA shall credit to COUNTY against the costs of its maintenance obligations, any amount 
of cash rental received from the sub-lessor. 

 
13. Building Maintenance and Utilities.   During the Initial Term and each Renewal Term, 

COUNTY will provide for the maintenance of the interior and exterior of the Premises and 
Common Areas through its own forces or, at COUNTY’s option by allocating funds to COA 
for such purpose. As provided at N.C. Gen. Stat. §115D-32 (d), COUNTY shall pay for all 
plant operation, maintenance and support as follows: 

 
 (a)          COUNTY will be directly responsible for maintaining and paying the expense of all        
                                                      areas outside the College Facility including but not limited to, grounds, parking lot                   

                                                      parking lot lighting, sidewalks, and fire hydrants.  COUNTY will also be responsible   
                                                   for repairs to underground infrastructure items. 

 

20



8 
 

 (b)                             COA will be directly responsible for managing all remaining items of N.C. Gen. Stat.    
                                                   §115-32(a)(2).  COA will provide an annual budget of anticipated expenses to                                                     
                                                   COUNTY on the date specified by COUNTY. 

 
14. Covenants of COA.  During the Initial Term and each renewal term, COA shall: 
 

(a)    maintain fire and extended casualty insurance sufficient to cover any and all losses to 
COA’s personal property located on the Premises; and 

 
(b) maintain public liability insurance insuring against property damage, personal injury, 

and public liability arising by reason of occurrences attributable to COA on or about 
the Premises or arising from the use of the Premises by COA as provided herein in an 
amount of not less than TWO MILLION AND NO/l00 DOLLARS ($2,000,000) in 
respect of any one occurrence; and 

 
(c) maintain such workers' compensation insurance coverages as may be required by 

applicable law; and 
 

(d) all insurance policies maintained by COA in accordance with the terms of this Lease 
shall: (i) be written by such insurance companies qualified to do business in North 
Carolina as may be reasonably acceptable to COUNTY; (ii) name both COUNTY and 
COA as named insureds thereunder as their interests may appear; and (iii) provide for 
cancellation only upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to both COUNTY and 
COA; and 

  
(e) COA shall abide by and observe any and all rules and regulations as COUNTY may 

from time to time reasonably adopt with respect to the coordination of the use of the 
Premises with the use and enjoyment by COUNTY of its adjoining properties for 
community college purposes. Such rules and regulations may include provisions 
governing and limiting the placement of signs upon the Premises and Common Area 
and provisions governing parking upon and access to the Common Area. 

 
15. Damage by Fire or Other Casualty.  If the Premises or any improvements erected on the 

Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty during the term hereof, COA 
shall immediately deliver written notice thereof to COUNTY and the following provisions 
shall apply: 

 
(a) As promptly as possible following such damage or destruction, COA shall provide to 

COUNTY an estimate of the costs' to repair or restore such damage or destruction 
and an estimate of the amount or time that will be required for the completion of such 
repairs and restoration. 

 
(b) If the damage or destruction can be repaired and restored for a reasonable cost then 

COUNTY shall promptly cause such damage or destruction to be repaired and the 
structure and other improvements to be restored substantially to the condition as 
existed just prior to the damage or destruction and this Lease shall continue in full 

21



9 
 

force and effect. Such repairs and restorations shall be pursued diligently and in a 
commercially reasonable manner and shall be concluded with reasonable dispatch.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Subparagraph 17(b), if: (i) Minor 
Damage occurs during the last thirty-six months of the Initial Term or of any renewal 
term and either COUNTY or COA has, prior to the occurrence of such Minor 
Damage, given the other party a thirty-six (36) month notice of the termination or 
non-renewal of this Lease as contemplated pursuant to Paragraph 2, or (ii) Minor 
Damage occurs after COUNTY has exercised its unilateral right of termination of this 
Lease as provided in Paragraph 12, then, in either of such situations, upon the 
occurrence of such Minor Damage, COA, at its option, may elect either: (A) to repair 
and restore such damage or destruction (in which event this Lease shall continue for 
the remainder of the initial Term or of the renewal term as the case may be and the 
restoration provisions of this Subparagraph 17(b) shall apply); or (B) to terminate this 
Lease with the effective date of termination being the date stated in such notice from 
COA.  COA shall make its election to repair or to terminate by written notice to 
COUNTY given within thirty (30) days following such Minor Damage.   

 
(c) If COA elects to repair or restore any damage to the Premises or other improvements 

at the Premises pursuant to this Paragraph 17, the provisions of Paragraph 4 shall 
apply as if such repairs and restoration were a part of the initial construction. 

 
16.  Condemnation.  In the event that all or any portion of the Premises is taken by  

 condemnation or eminent domain during the term of this Lease, the following provisions 
 shall apply: 

 
 (a) if the taking is of all of the Premises or of such a substantial portion thereof that the 

Premises cannot reasonably be restored and operated by COA for the purposes set forth 
herein, then this Lease shall terminate immediately upon the vesting of title in the 
condemning authority. In the event of such taking, then COA shall be entitled to be paid 
from the condemnation proceeds that portion thereof which equals the reasonable fair 
market value of improvements at the Premises paid for by COA.  

 
 (b) if the taking is only of a portion of the Premises, such that following the taking the 

Premises can reasonably be restored and operated for the purposes set forth herein, then 
this Lease shall not terminate as a result of such taking. Instead, COUNTY shall, 
promptly following such taking, restore the remaining Premises to as near a condition as 
existed prior to such taking as is possible under the circumstances and this Lease shall 
continue in effect. The proceeds of the taking shall be applied to the costs and expenses 
incurred by COUNTY in restoring the Premises.  

 
17.                   Default.  Each of the following events shall be an "Event of Default" under this Lease: 
 

(a) COA shall fail to pay any of the annual rents as and when required hereunder and such 
failure shall continue unremedied for thirty (30) days following written notice from 
COUNTY; 

 

22



10 
 

(b) COA shall fail to comply with any of its covenants, agreements or obligations set forth 
herein and such failure continues unremedied for thirty (30) days following written notice 
from COUNTY; provided, however, that if such failure is of such a nature that it cannot 
reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days, then the cure period accorded COA shall be 
extended for such reasonable period of time as may be required to remedy such failure 
provided COA commences the cure within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter 
diligently pursues completing the remediation of such failure; or 
 
(c) COA ceases operation as a community college or becomes insolvent or has a receiver 
or trustee appointed for all or substantially all of its assets.  Upon the occurrence of any 
Event of Default, the COUNTY shall have the option to pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies with or without further notice or demand: 

 
(i) terminate this Lease, in which event, COA shall immediately surrender 

possession of the Premises to COUNTY, and if COA shall fail to do so, the 
COUNTY may recover such possession by self-help, summary ejectment, or such 
other judicial procedure as the COUNTY may elect to pursue.  Upon any 
termination of this Lease pursuant to this Paragraph 19 and by reason of the 
COAs default, title to the Premises, including structures and all other 
improvements constructed thereon by COA shall automatically vest in COUNTY 
without further action and without payment of any compensation to COA. 

 
(ii) without terminating this Lease, advance such sums and do all things 

necessary to cure the Event of Default, in which event, COA shall immediately 
upon demand reimburse COUNTY for all costs incurred by COUNTY in curing 
such Event of Default. 

 
Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude pursuit of any of the other 
remedies herein provided or any other remedies provided by law.  Forbearance by 
COUNTY to enforce one or more of the remedies provided for upon the occurrence of an 
Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of such default.  
In the event that COUNTY institutes any legal action or proceeding against COA as the 
result of or in connection with an Event of Default, COUNTY shall be entitled to recover 
from COA, in addition to such other damages and sums as may be due, such attorneys' 
fees, court costs, and other costs as may be incurred by COUNTY in connection with 
such action. 
 

18. Release and Indemnity of the COUNTY.    COUNTY shall not be liable to COA or its 
members, employees, agents, patrons or invitees, or any person whomsoever, for any 
injury to person or damage to property caused by or resulting from: (i) any negligence of 
COA; (ii) COA’s use and operation of the Premises; or (iii) any condition of the 
Premises.  And COA shall have no liability for acts or omission of County or its agents, 
employees, or representatives’ gross or simple negligence, intentional or unintentional 
conduct or otherwise. The Board of Trustees accepts liability for the death or injury of 
person or for property damage cause by the negligence or tort of any agent  or employee 

23



11 
 

of the Board of Trustees when the agent or employee is acting within the scope of his 
authority or in the course of his employment.   

 
19. Miscellaneous. In addition to the foregoing, the COUNTY and COA agree as follows: 
 

(a) Notices:  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered or given hereunder or by 
law shall be deemed to be delivered or given, whether actually received or not, (a) when 
delivered in person, (b) two (2) business days after such items are deposited in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid, certified return receipt requested, or (c) one (1) business day 
after such item is deposited with a recognized overnight commercial courier shipping 
charges prepaid, and addressed to the appropriate party hereto at its address set out 
below, or at such other address as it shall have theretofore specified by written notice 
delivered in accordance herewith: 

 
If to COA:                   College of the Albemarle  

Post Office Box 2327  
Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27906-2327  
Attention: President 

 
If to the COUNTY:       Currituck County  

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

                                                   Attention: County Manager 
 

(b)    Quiet Enjoyment:  COUNTY represents that it is the owner in fee simple of the 
Premises and that it has the right to enter into this Lease as provided herein. COUNTY 
agrees that COA, upon paying the rent and performing its covenants and obligations 
hereunder, shall peaceably and quietly hold and enjoy the Premises for the term of this 
Lease, without any hindrance or ejection by COUNTY, its successors or assigns or those 
claiming by, through or under COUNTY. 

 
(c)           Waiver of Subrogation:  COUNTY and COA severally waive any and every 
claim which arises or may arise in its favor and against the other during the term of this 
Lease for any and all loss of, or damage to, any of its own property located upon the 
Premises or constituting a part of the Premises, which loss or damage is covered by valid 
fire and extended coverage, general liability or worker's compensation insurance policies.  

 
(d)          Landlord-Tenant Relationship:  This Lease is intended to create only the 
relationship of landlord and tenant between COUNTY and COA and is not intended to 
create a partnership or joint venture or to make either party responsible for the actions of 
the other. 

 
(e)          Memorandum of Lease: At the request of either party, the other party will 
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the party requesting the same, a short form 
memorandum of this Lease in statutory form and suitable for recordation. 

 

24



12 
 

(f)           Governing Law:  This Lease and all matters relating to it shall be governed in 
all respects by North Carolina law. 

 
(g)          Entire Agreement:  This Lease contains the entire agreement between 
COUNTY and COA with respect to the lease of the Premises and its use and shall not be 
modified or amended in any manner except by an instrument in writing executed by the 
parties. Moreover, this lease, by mutual consent, supersedes, replaces and extinguishes as 
null and void, any prior lease of the parties regarding the subject property.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and COA have executed and delivered this Lease 
as of the day and year first above written. 

 
                                                      COA: Trustees of the College of The Albemarle 

 
                                              
               
By:__________________________________________________(SEAL)    
       Chair,  Board of Trustees 

 
 
By:__________________________________________________(SEAL) 

                                            Dr. Kandi Deitemeyer, President of College of the Albemarle 
 
 

 
 

 
                                                                  CURRITUCK COUNTY:  

 
             By:________________________________________________(SEAL) 

                                                                   Chair, Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
   By: ______________________________                                                   (COUNTY SEAL) 
                           Clerk to the Board of Commissioners       
 
 
I certify that this instrument has been preaudited in 
the manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
_________________________________________ 
Currituck County Finance Officer 
 

 

25



Currituck County
Michelle Perry EIT
Engineer Technician

MEMORANDUM

Date September 20 2012

To County of Currituck Board of Commissioners
Daniel F Scanlon ll County Manager

From Michelle Perry Engineer Technician
Eric Weatherly PECounty Engineer

RE COA Apron
Recommendation of Award

Post Office Box 38

Currituck North Carolina 27929

2522326034
FAX2522323298

MichellePerry@CurrituckCountyNCgov

On Friday August 3 2012 bids were opened for the College of The Albemarle Regional
Aviation 8 Technical Training Center Apron COA Apron This project will construct an asphalt
aircraft parking area behind the Aviation Center as well as a connection to Airport Road

Two bids were received from the following contractors RPC Contracting Inc RPC and Barnhill
Contracting Company The low bidder was RPC with a total bid of 375274 Attached for your
review is the bid tabulation sheet from the airport consulting engineer Talbert Bright lnc

The Division of Aviation has provided a grant to fund this project as well as the engineering fees
on the condition that the County provides a 10 match to the funds At the August 20 2012
Board of Commissioners meeting a Project Ordinance was approved for the County to transfer
the appropriate funds for this project The County and Division of Aviatian are currently executing
a Grant Agreement for this project

Staff recommends the contract be awarded contingent upon Division of Aviation Grant
Agreement execution to RPC in the amount of 375274

1 Fage

26



atomfAl0
m

OY
mF

y

a
C

c
o

H
veE0

3
N

L

O
C

C

3
C

j
d

w
dO

F
m

Y

1
V

NmaC0a
o

Qc
r

a
Q

Nr
i

O
QCCS

r

Q

C
X

Or

7
CO

O

U
O

N
Wm

Ec
Z

O
m

U
U

F
m

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
S

S
O

O
O

O
O

O
C

O
O

O
g

h
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
O

O

C
to

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

CO
O

O
O

O
O

S
p

Vh
OC

D
CVM

t17
O

O
fJ

0O
0

0O
rtD

a
o

pO
O

S
S

ON
S

t
f

M
0
0

O
D

Ot
OU

t0
C

O
r

OU
t
f
N

S
O

D
nt

d1
6
f

Or
O

f
f

rl0
N

O
O

C
O

0
1

l
O

N
N

M
C

O
C

O
O

N

U
N

n
NM

f
r

r
0

d
Ot
i

M
r

O
M

Z
c

Z
A

fP
r

4
J

d
E

A
6
9

to
to

E
R

b
9

d
9
fH

C
fl

fR
E

H
V

E
fl

to
6
9

to
fA

H

U
C

S
0O

0O
0O

0O
0O

0O
0

p
0

0
0

0O
0O

0
0

00
0tC

y
S

O
S

O0
0

OO
dP

OO
OO

OO
O

t
M

O
O

t0
O

r
0

d

U
J

V
S

O
O

n
T

l0
O

N
O

O
r

gyp
t
l

tV
O

C7
M

N
N

L
p

M
p0
0

N
S

N
r

r
O

C
D

C
O

M
C

O
C

O
r

M
l0

r
M

M

C
W

t
i

r
r

r

m

Z
6
9

E
fl

E
A

b
9

fR
C

f
fR

V
E

A
6
f

t
f

E
A

fR
G

H
to
f3

E
R

6
H

C
A

b
tft

t
f

C
A

6
9

4
i

0
0

S
O

S
S

S
S

pS
S

S
S

pS
O

O
O

O
O

S
S

O
O

O
S

O
S

S
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1
A

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
CO

0
0

0
0
0

O
M

i
0

0t
0

h
o

Q
0O

0C
p

0P
0N

0I
00
1

MO
NN

N4
OO

mr

0O
Nt0

OM
Md

0
0to

0O
C

O
r

NI
VC

NV
vC

O
M

a
0

O
cO

OC
O

N

C
O

f
M

N
D

N
f

r
r

p
p

t
f

O
C

O
O

N
r

r
N

N
A

O
D

r
O

N
b

N
5

N
r

M
O

iN
r

r

M
C

M
O

1Y

Z
W

Xx
6
9
f

6
9

fA
6
A

fR
6
9
tY

iR
E

A
6
9

fH
V

f9
fA

fA
to

to
fH

A
fA

A

o

c
m

p
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

O
O

3
0

S
O

O
0

0
O

0
0

O
O

N
N

O
O

M
O

C
O

O
r

O
S

t
O

O
U

a
C1

CO
f

M
O

CO
C

h
G

l
r

n
CC

CV
CU

CD
CV

O
G

O
C

Cp
O

O
J

0
r

0
O

N
N

0 t
M

N
d

V
0

1
tp

O
c

M
tD

M
c

c
rJ

M
Y

N
M

O
r

C
A

r

N

UZ
E

A
fA

b
9

E
A

to
6
9

fA
E

9
fH

E
A

d
E

A
C

A
6
9

C
f

V
C

A

C
0

O
O

O
O

S
S

O
O

m
r

O
C
0

O
r

N
M

r
r

CO
M

tf
t

p
S

N
r

r
S

r
r

e
O

N
N

r
r

r
O

N
N

r
O

D
CV

CV
dC

fA
m

1
1

U
L
L

U
C

f6
N

C
L
l
l

IL
V

L
L

U
U

L
L

J
Q

U
U

U
Q

J
fn

U
U

9
C

A
C

A
In

1
U

j
W

J
Q

Q
O

W
W

W
l

I

mUU

c

c
m

m

o
W

co
v

cO
C

C
4
1

Cp
U

Q
W

N
i

O
Q

U
r

m
o

v
3

c
yc

g
Wo

c

Ua
1

N
Q

C
Co

Co
L
J

C
C

6
U

v
a

o
m

y
u

1
Yc

rn
m

N1
c

0a
c

v
m

u
y

m
V

Q
ii

U
E

c
j

cn
m

c
O

m
N

c
o

c
U

c
c

W
m

d
2

c
a

m
c

E
ZYS

co
W

U
d

c

v
m

u
c

m
W

a
o

0
o

c
c

v
3

ca
a
1

O
a

rn

N
C

N
L

O
O

O
ll1

y
m

C
C

C
f6

O
L

L
8

N
S

v
C

E
E

m
y

EY
E7

EO
c

o
CT

CT
7

n

r
O

O
O

C
d

L
U

U
C

F
F

F
I

Q
W

U
m

m
m

d
Q
I
r
r

o0
N

S
j

OO
rO

NO
NO

Nto
t0t0

C
O

t0
p

pC
p

OO
C

O
DO

rO
NO

MO
ON

ON
rM

r0
r0

CNO
CNO

CNO
O

O
O

r
r

r
r

r
C

A
r

N
C

C
CC

W
t
i
t
i

r
r

C
n

O
O

Q
Q

F
v1

d
d

O
d

4
d

d
a

ri
a

a
d

a
a

a
a

a
d

d
u

u
Li

H
H

r
N

M
T

1
t

C
O

1
M

0
r

r
r

O
r

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
r

N

aIvm00C
27



OCEAN SANDS WATER AND SEWER ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 

Barbara Marzetti 
609 Sea Oats Court 
Corolla, NC  27927 
Phone: (252) 453-6490 
Email: bmarzetti@corollacivicassociation.com 
 
 
Pat Riley 
763 Sunrise Court 
Corolla, NC  27927 
Phone: (252) 453-2493 
Email: liamor@earthlink.net 
 
 
Pat McDowell 
PO Box 391 
Elizabeth City, NC  27909 
Phone: (252) 338-4161 
Email: PATMCDOW@aol.com 
 
 
Braxton Hill 
PO Box 1717 
Virginia Beach, VA  23451 
Phone: (757) 422-9111 
Email: coastland@inetmail.att.net 
 
 
Carlos Gomez 
PO Box 1129 
Kitty Hawk, NC  27949 
Phone: (252) 261-4151 
Email: carlos@coastales.com 
 

28

mailto:bmarzetti@corollacivicassociation.com
mailto:liamor@earthlink.net
mailto:PATMCDOW@aol.com
mailto:coastland@inetmail.att.net
mailto:carlos@coastales.com


OCEAN SANDS WATER SEWER DISTRICT ADVISORY BOARD

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Braxton Hill Coastland Corporation

Carlos Gomez Coastland Corporation

Barbara Marzetti BOC 9/4/12

Pat Riley BOC 9/4/12

Pat McDowell* Sarah Albrite Dietrich BOC 9/4/12

* Resigned-To Be Replaced

29



Section 508 Travel Expense and Reimbursement 
A. Purpose 
It is the intent of this section to provide the 
necessary rules and regulations for a comprehensive 
5.9 
reference and uniform interpretation of payment or 
reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses 
pertaining to official County business. 
All board members, employees and non-County employees 
on official County business are subject to this policy. 
B. Board Member and Employee Responsibility 
A board member or employee traveling on official 
business is expected to exercise the same care in 
incurring expenses that a prudent person would exercise 
if traveling on personal business and expending 
personal funds. Excess costs, circuitous routes, 
luxury accommodations, and services unnecessary or 
unjustified in the performance of official business are 
not acceptable under this standard. Board members and 
employees will be responsible for unauthorized costs 
and any additional expenses incurred for personal 
preference or convenience. Willful violations of this 
policy may result in dismissal from County employment 
or other disciplinary action. 
C. Definitions 
Authorizing Party. An individual authorized by this 
policy to approve or disapprove requests for travel, 
cash advances, travel reimbursements, etc. 
Employee's Official Base of Operation. "Official base 
of operation" is defined as the job location at which 
the employee spends the majority of his or her working 
hours. For an employee in travel status, the official 
base of operation should be the point where traveling 
begins the majority of the time (home or office). 
Non-County Employees. Non-County employees traveling 
on official business whose expenses are paid by the 
County are subject to these regulations, including 
subsistence allowances, to the same extent as County 
employees. Travel expenses for members of a nonemployee's 
family are not eligible to be paid by the 
County. No travel advances will be made to non-County 
employees except as otherwise authorized by the County 
Manager. 
Requesting Party. The person who will be reimbursed 
for travel costs incurred while conducting County 
business. 
Subsistence (Lodging and Meals). Subsistence is an 

30



allowance related to lodging and meal costs, including 
gratuities. 
5.10 
Transportation. Transportation expenses include 
personal automobile, taxi, bus, train, airplane, motor 
pool charges, auto rentals, tolls, and parking fees. 
All travel expenses must be incurred by and for board 
members, employees, or other eligible travelers while 
conducting official County business in order to be 
eligible for reimbursement. 
Travel. Travel is defined as going to and from the 
official base of operation to another location to 
conduct County business. 
D. Authorization and accommodations 
1. A written request for travel must describe the 
travel requested, the purpose of the proposed 
travel and the period of time away from the 
County. Authorization of travel requests will be 
based upon need and cost/benefit of travel as 
determined by the authorizing party. For all instate 
travel, other than travel by the County 
Manager and elected officials, the Department Head 
is hereby considered the authorizing party. The 
County Manager shall authorize all out-of-state 
travel. The County Manager shall approve all 
travel for Department Heads. The Finance Director 
will review all travel expenses of the County 
Manager and elected officials and any expenses not 
in keeping with this Article will be submitted to 
the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for 
disposition. 
2. All arrangements for travel must be approved by 
the authorizing party. All travel costs except 
airline tickets, fuel, lodging and registrations 
will be paid directly by the requesting party and 
will not be billed to the County, except by those 
persons authorized to use a County credit or 
purchasing cards. In many cases, it is customary 
for airline tickets, lodging and registrations to 
be paid directly by the County either in advance 
or to be invoiced later. The requesting party is 
encouraged to use travel agents and reserve 
transportation and lodging in advance when 
possible. The requesting party also is encouraged 
to travel with other employees and officials of 
the County and representatives of other government 
units when possible. The requesting party will be 

31



reimbursed for cost incurred only, subject to 
limitations established in this Article. 
E. Specific Guidelines Relating to Transportation, 
Subsistence, and Other Costs 
1. Transportation 
5.11 
(a) Common Carrier - Actual coach fare 
(substantiated by receipt) will be 
reimbursed. First class travel should be 
used only in extraordinary circumstances and 
only with prior approval of the County 
Manager. Penalties and charges resulting 
from the cancellation of airline reservations 
(or other travel reservations) shall be the 
County's obligation if the employee's travel 
has been approved in advance and the 
cancellation or change is made at the 
direction of and for the convenience of the 
County. If the cancellation or change is 
made for the personal benefit of the 
employee, it shall be the employee's 
obligation to pay the penalties and charges. 
However, in the event of accidents, serious 
illness or death within the employee's 
immediate family, or other critical 
circumstances beyond the control of the 
employee, the County may be obligated to pay 
the penalties and charges at the County 
Manager's discretion. 
Super Saver Rates - When traveling by common 
carrier to conduct official County business, 
employees traveling to their destination 
earlier than necessary and/or delaying their 
return to avail the County of reduced 
transportation rates may be reimbursed 
subsistence for additional travel days if, in 
the opinion of the Department Head, the 
amount saved in transportation costs due to 
the early and/or delayed travel is greater 
than the amount expended in salary and 
additional subsistence. Prior written 
approval of the Department Head is required. 
(b) Personal Vehicle - A requesting party may use 
his/her personal vehicle for travel and be 
reimbursed only if one of the following 
conditions is met: 
(1) No County vehicle is available or use of 

32



a County vehicle is not practical. 
(2) The requesting party needs a specially 
equipped vehicle. 
The allowable rate per mile as established in 
the budget ordinance will be paid to an 
employee who uses his/her personal vehicle. 
5.12 
Actual mileage is reimbursable mileage, 
measured from the closer of the official base 
of operation or the point of departure to the 
destination (and return). 
Parking fees, tolls, and storage fees are 
reimbursable. Receipts are required for all 
fees. Reimbursement of expense for airport 
parking is limited to ninety-six hours, with 
a receipt required. Airport parking expenses 
in excess of ninety-six hours may be 
reimbursed in extraordinary circumstances if 
advance approval is obtained from the 
Department Head. 
(c) Rental Vehicle - A receipt is necessary for 
reimbursement. Rental vehicles are to be 
used as a last resort. Use of a rental 
vehicle must be approved in advance by the 
authorizing party. 
(d) Commuting - 
(1) No reimbursement shall be made for the 
use of a personal vehicle in commuting 
from an employee's home to his/her 
official base of operation. 
(2) Travel to/from airport: at employee's 
official base of operation - 
Reimbursement for travel between the 
board member's or employee's official 
base of operation and the nearest 
airline terminal and for appropriate 
parking may be made under the following 
circumstances. For travel by: 
- Airport limousine - one round trip 
limousine fare; 
- Taxi - limited to reimbursement rate 
for use of private vehicle; 
- Private vehicle - the IRS rate per 
mile for a maximum of two round 
trips with parking charges for a 
maximum of ninety-six hours. 
Receipts are required for airport 

33



parking claims. 
(3) Travel to/from airport: at board 
member's or employee's destination - 
Reimbursement for travel to and from the 
airline terminal at the board member's 
5.13 
or employee's destination may be made 
where available as listed below: 
- Airport limousine - one round trip 
limousine fare; 
- Bus - one round trip bus fare; 
- Taxi - when limousine service is not 
available, actual fare to and from 
airline terminal; 
- Rental vehicles - may be used as a 
last resort (receipt required). 
(4) Taxis and limousines other than trips to 
and from the airport - The actual cost 
of taxi and limousine fares is 
reimbursable when required for travel on 
official County business. 
(e) County Vehicles - County vehicles may be used 
for any authorized travel. The requesting 
party must obey all laws of the jurisdiction 
in which the vehicle is being operated. The 
vehicle will be used in conducting County 
business only. A de minimis amount of 
personal use, such as driving the vehicle to 
and from dinner, may be allowed. Non-County 
employees may accompany County employees if 
they have a business interest in the travel. 
Spouses and children of County employees may 
accompany them in County vehicles if space is 
available and the trip is strictly for 
official County business. 
Personal Use of County Provided Vehicles. The 
personal use of an employer provided vehicle 
is a taxable fringe benefit unless exempted 
by federal law. 
Exempt vehicles are 1) clearly marked 
police and fire response vehicles 2) 
ambulances and QRVs 3) unmarked vehicles used 
by law enforcement officers if the use is 
officially authorized. 
These vehicles should not be used more 
than the de minimus amount for personal 
purposes. (de minimus personal use: a stop 

34



for lunch between two business appointments, 
or similar situation) N.C.G.S. 14-247 states 
“It shall be unlawful for any officer, agent 
or employee of the State of North Carolina, 
5.14 
or any county or of any institution or agency 
of the State, to use for any private purpose 
whatsoever any motor vehicle of any type or 
description whatsoever belonging to the 
State, or to any county, or to any 
institution or agency of the State.” 
Nonexempt vehicles are vehicles owned by 
the County and are provided to one or more 
employees for use in connection with County 
business. 
All County owned vehicles used in the 
day to day operations of business are to be 
kept in a designated County parking facility 
when not in use. 
Certain employees in connection with 
daily work conditions are provided the use of 
a business vehicle to commute to and from 
home when the situation is such that it is 
economically logical. A written request must 
be submitted to the County Manager and his 
approval must be granted before nonexempt 
vehicle use is to begin. Nonexempt vehicle 
use is a taxable benefit according to the 
IRS. 
The vehicle benefit will be calculated 
according to the IRS Commuting Valuation 
Rule. (See IRS Publication 535) 
2. Subsistence - The following is the maximum 
allowable statutory rate: 
(a) Lodging: 
(1) Authorization - Written approval by a 
department official designated by the 
Department Head must be obtained in 
order to qualify for reimbursement for 
overnight stays. Supervisory personnel 
certifying the reimbursement request as 
necessary and proper may require 
documentation from the traveler to 
substantiate that the overnight lodging 
was necessary. 
(2) Reimbursement - Each employee is 
responsible for his or her own request 

35



for reimbursement. Requests for 
reimbursement must be filed within 30 
days after the travel period ends for 
5.15 
which the reimbursement is being 
requested. Lodging cost will be 
reimbursed at the actual amount 
incurred. Receipts for lodging cost must 
be submitted with travel reimbursement 
requests. The lodging rate is limited to 
the available single room rate when an 
employee is traveling with a family 
member. Specific dates of lodging must 
be listed on the reimbursement request, 
and substantiated by a receipt from a 
commercial lodging establishment. 
Personal expenses such as: telephone 
calls, haircuts, valet, laundry, and 
beauty parlor are not reimbursable. 
Self-entertainment activities such as: 
movies, nightclubs, health clubs, dinner 
theaters, bowling, etc. are not 
reimbursable. 
(3) Tips - The subsistence rate is not 
inclusive of gratuities or baggage 
handling tips that may be claimed for 
porters at terminals and hotels as 
"other expenses." 
(4) Excess - Excess lodging authorization 
must be obtained in advance from the 
County Manager. 
(b) Meals 
(1) Reimbursement - Each board member and 
employee is responsible for his or her 
own request for reimbursement. 
Substantiated meals may be reimbursed at 
an amount up to the maximum per diem 
allowance provided by the IRS, adjusted 
for region and location as established 
in the budget ordinance, or as otherwise 
authorized by the County Manager. 
Specific dates of meals must be listed 
on the reimbursement request. No 
reimbursement will be made for alcoholic 
beverages. Each meal reimbursement rate 
must be listed on the reimbursement 
request. Time of departure and arrival 

36



must be listed on the reimbursement 
request. 
i. Employees may receive allowances 
for meals for partial days of 
travel when the partial day is the 
day of departure or the day of 
5.16 
return under the following 
circumstances: 
- Breakfast – depart official base 
of operation prior to 6:00 a.m. 
and extend the normal workday by 
two hours 
- Lunch – depart official base of 
operation prior to 10:00 a.m. or 
return to official base of 
operation after 2:00 p.m. 
- Dinner – return to official base 
of operation after 8:00 p.m. and 
extend the normal workday by 
three hours. 
ii. Normally, allowances shall not be 
paid to employees for lunches if 
travel does not involve overnight 
stay. To be eligible for allowances 
for breakfast and dinner the 
employee must leave or return to 
his/her official base of operation 
in accordance with the schedule 
enumerated above. 
(2) Reimbursement for Meals - Required 
Employee Attendance - 
i. A board member, County employee or 
non-County employee on official 
County business may be reimbursed 
for meals, including lunches, when 
the job requires his/her attendance 
at the meeting of a board, 
commission, or committee in his/her 
official capacity and the meal is 
attended by a majority of the 
board, commission or committee. 
ii. A board member or County employee 
may be reimbursed for meals, 
including lunches, when the meal is 
included as an integral part of a 
congress, conference, assembly, 

37



convocation, etc. Such congress 
must involve the active 
participation of persons other than 
the employees of the County; the 
employee's attendance is required 
for the performance of his/her 
duties, but must not be part of the 
employee's normal day-to-day 
5.17 
business activities; the congress 
must be planned in advance with a 
formal agenda; and the congress 
must provide written notice or an 
invitation to participants. 
iii. Employees claiming reimbursement 
under this provision are limited to 
the meal subsistence rates for 
board members and employees. 
(3) Excess - Excess meals authorization must 
be obtained in advance from the County 
Manager. 
3. Other Costs 
(a) Telephone Calls 
(1) Long distance - Board members and 
employees are not allowed to charge long 
distance phone calls to the County for 
calls made of a personal nature. 
(2) Reimbursement - Official phone calls are 
reimbursable under "other expenses." 
Individual calls must be identified as 
to point of origin and destination. 
(b) The County will pay no travel insurance 
premiums. 
(c) The cost of traveler’s checks or money orders 
is not a reimbursable item. 
(d) Loss of funds or personal belongings while 
traveling is the responsibility of the 
employee and will not be reimbursed. 
F. Authorization for Reimbursement Procedures 
1. Travel advances will be issued at the discretion 
of the Finance Director. The amount of the travel 
advance may not exceed the estimated travel cost. 
Unused travel advances shall be repaid no later 
than seven working days after completion of the 
approved travel. The Finance Director will not 
issue a travel advance unless the authorizing 
party has approved the travel. 

38



2. Submitting expense reports - 
(a) A requesting party will complete a 
reimbursement form, attach receipts and 
submit it to the authorizing party no later 
5.18 
than five working days after returning from 
travel. The authorizing party must submit 
the reimbursement form to the Finance 
Director within 10 days after the travel 
period ends or June 30th, whichever occurs 
first. Advances will be deducted from 
reimbursable costs. 
(b) A requesting party submitting a falsified 
reimbursement form will be subject to 
disciplinary action and criminal prosecution. 
An authorizing party or Finance Director who 
approves a falsified reimbursement form that 
they know to be false will be subject to 
disciplinary action or criminal prosecution. 
Violations of the County's travel policy may 
result in dismissal from County employment. 
3. Approval and processing of reimbursement requests 
(a) Reimbursement requests will be submitted to 
the authorizing party for approval. After 
approval by the authorizing party, the form 
should be forwarded to the County Finance 
Director. 
(b) The Finance Director will determine that the 
reimbursement form has been properly 
approved, that it is mathematically correct, 
and that requested reimbursements agree to 
submitted receipts and are within the limits 
set by this policy. If an error in the 
reimbursement request is found, the 
requesting party will be informed and the 
error will be corrected before payment is 
made. 
(c) Before the reimbursement is made, the Finance 
Director will determine that an amount 
sufficient to pay the request has been 
encumbered for payment, or that there is a 
sufficient unexpended appropriation in the 
expenditure item. The Finance Director will 
immediately inform the authorizing party and 
requesting party if payment cannot be made. 
 

39



Name of Fire District:
Moyock V.F.D. & Rescue Squad, Inc.
Moyock CurrituckCounty:

District is Served By:

NOTE: This report must be filled out completely before October 31st or no later than January 31.  Reports
filed after this date are in non-compliance and the fire department will not be eligible to receive their
Firefighter's Relief Fund monies.

NORTH CAROLINA

RURAL FIRE DISTRICT

REPORT OF FIRE CONDITIONS

Mr. Richard Lane
110 Oakdale Dr
Moyock, NC 27958

( )

As required by General Statute 58-84-46 of North Carolina, I clerk do hereby make the following report on
the Rural Fire District Moyock.  County of Currituck.

LOCAL FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF FUND BOARD

N.C. General Statutes: 8-84-30
(This information must be provided each year)

IF DEPARTMENT DOES NOT WISH TO PARTICIPATE, PLEASE INDICATE IN THIS SECTION

Mr.  David Daniel
100 Beechwood Dr
Moyock, NC 27958

2.1.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by Fire Department (2)

Ms. Lisa Gadkowski

100 Lanhorn Dr.

Moyock, NC 27958

Mrs. Alicia Lane

110 Oakdale Dr.

Moyock, NC 27958

3. 4.

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by the Insurance Commissioner (1)

Mr. John Wheeler

544 Poyner's Rd

Moyock, NC 27958

5. Same as last Year? Yes No(X) ( )

If no, attach a copy of former Insurance
Commissioner appointee's letter of resignation AND
a copy of Fire Chief's letter of recommendation.

Select position of Firefighter's Relief Fund Treasurer: ( ) ( ) ( ) (X)1 2 3 4 5

I, Sandra Hill Clerk/Finance Officer of Currituck County,  NC do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true,
full and correct report of the Fire Department and fire conditions in said county, made by me as required
under General Statute58-84-46 of North Carolina.

_________________
Date

Firefighter's Relief Fund Trustees appointed by County Commissioners (2)

09/25/2012

09/25/2012 08:29:42
40



Number 2013024

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

68888-590000 Capital Outlay 137,826$                    
68888-561000 Professional Services 5,896$                        
68888-533200 Lab Test 6,000$                        
68888-557100 Software License Fee 105$                           
68330-449900 Miscellaneous Grants 106,813$                  
68330-448800 Walnut Island Sanitary District 30,000$                    
68390-499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 13,014$                    

149,827$                    149,827$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Walnut Island Sewer Fund (68888) - Increase appropriations for road work and additional operating 
costs for the sewer district.

Net Budget Effect: Walnut Island Sewer Fund (68) - Increased by $149,827.

41



Number 2013025

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10540-532000 Supplies 700$                         
10540-553000 Dues & Subscriptions 700$                           

700$                           700$                         

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Inspections (10540) - Transfer funds for certification renewals for inspectors.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

42



Number 2013026

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-502000 Salaries 936$                         
10750-545000 Contracted Services 936$                           

10760-585001 Donations - Currituck Kids 1,000$                        
10380-487001 Donations - Currituck Kids 1,000$                      

1,936$                        1,936$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

DSS Administration (10750); Public Assistance (10760) - To transfer funds from position vacancy for 
staff training in Medicaid Transportation and Crisis Intervention programs and to increase budget for 
Currituck Kids donation to actual received.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,000.

43



Number 2013027

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640-545002 Contract Services - NCSU Salary 41,026$                      
10640-502000 Salary 29,916$                    
10640-505000 FICA 2,296$                      
10640-506000 Insurance 5,293$                      
10640-507000 Retirement 3,521$                      

41,026$                      41,026$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To reclassify Ag Technician position from a County position to a 
100% County funded State position.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

44



Number 2013028

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10795-545000 Contract Services 1,512$                        
10795-516001 Repairs & Maintenance - Parks 1,512$                      

1,512$                        1,512$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Parks & Recreation (10795) - Transfer funds for additional cleaning services for the Community 
Center.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

45



Currituck Cou

Michelle Perry EIT
Engineer Technician

MEMORANDUM

Date September 21 2012

To County of Currituck Board of Commissioners
Daniel F Scanlon II County Manager

From Michelle Perry Engineer Technician
Eric Weatherly PECounty Engineer

RE Currituck Community Park Roads Infrastructure

Change Order 1

Post Office Box 38

Currituck North Carolina 27929

2522326034
FAX 2522323298

MichellePe rry@Cu rrituckCountyNCgov

The Currituck Community Park Roads and Infrastructure project consists of the construction of

Maple Parkway College Way widening of Hwy 158 at College Way and the extension of
water and sewer to the College of The Albemarle Facility

Attached are 4 copies of Change Order 1 for this project The contractor for Maple Commerce
Park is Barnhill Contracting Company While relocating a 10 water main on Hwy 158 Bamhill
uncovered a 6 connection to a fire hydrant that was not originally located As a result Barnhill
has requested 6980 to cover the required additional labor and materials to transfer this
connection to the new 10 water main

The original contract price for the Roads 8 Infrastructure project was136822930 This change
order will increase the contract amount by698000 As a result the new contract amount will be

137520930

1 Page

46



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
September 17, 2012   
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the 
Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members present: 
Chairman Rorer, Commissioners Gilbert, O’Neal, Etheridge, Martin 
and Petrey. Commissioner Aydlett was absent due to illness. 
  

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 

 
The Reverend Randy Blanchard, Pilmoor Memorial United 
Methodist Church, was present to give the invocation. 
 

C) Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Etheridge moved to amend the agenda by adding 
Item B under Public Hearing for Chris Turner, Wildlife 
Resources Commissioner, to discuss Coyotes, and resolution 
for surplus property for IT Department.  Commissioner 
Martin seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-15 Bissell Professional Group:  Request 
to amend the new Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 
4, Section 4.2.5 Industrial Uses to allow expansions of existing mining 
operations. 

B) Chris Turner, Wildlife Resources Commission to discuss Coyotes in the 
County  

 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, presentation on Currituck County Rural 
Center  

B) Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, recognizing the Board of Commissioners 
for their Outstanding Partnership with Cooperative Extension  

C) Update on the Department of Planning and Community Development  
D) Update on the Moyock Small Area Plan  

47



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   2 

New Business 
 
A) Consent Agenda: 

1. ITS Surplus Resolution 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Appointments to the Local Firefighter's Relief Fund Board for 

Carova Beach, Corolla, Crawford and Knotts Island 
4. Resolution to surplus vehicles 
5. Resolution Celebrating the 300th Anniversary of Craven County 
6. Resolution Approval for Local Water Supply Plans for Currituck 

Water Systems 
7. Approval of September 4, 2012 Minutes 
8. Grant Ordinance for 2 year grant for clearing Hog Bridge Ditch 

B) Commissioner’s Report 
C) County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 
 

D) Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the 
regular agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

 
Chairman Rorer opened the public comment period.  There 
being no comments, he closed the public comment period. 
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-15 Bissell 
Professional Group:  Request to amend the new 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, 
Chapter 4, Section 4.2.5 Industrial Uses to allow 
expansions of existing mining operations. 

 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 

BISSELL PROFESSIONAL GROUP 
PB 12-15 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 4 Use Standards, to allow expansions of existing mining operations. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina 
that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Section 4.2.5. Industrial Uses is amended by deleting the strikethrough and adding 
the underlined text: 
 

48



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   3 

AA..  Extractive Industry 

Extractive industry uses shall receive and maintain a State of North Carolina 
mining permit and comply with the following standards: 

((11))  General 

(a) Any mine activity affecting more than one acre (including 
excavation, area where overburden is placed, area used 
processing or treatment and settling ponds, access roads, 
etc.) shall be subject to these regulations and require a use 
permit.  

(b) All State permits and applications for State permits associated 
with the mining activity, including permit modifications, shall 
be filed with the Planning Department by the applicant. 

((22))  Size 

No more than 30 percent of the total site shall be excavated at any 
given time during the mining operation and after completion except as 
otherwise provided in this section. 

((33))  Setbacks 

(a) No activities associated with the mine, including but not 
limited to excavation activities, vehicular access (except for 
driveways providing access to the site) and detention ponds 
shall be located within 100 feet of any property line and 300 
feet of any residence, school, religious institution, hospital, 
commercial or industrial building, public road, or cemetery. 

(b) Setbacks may be reduced by 50 percent when there is a 
complete visual screen at least six feet in height and an 
intermittent visual screen to a height of at least 20 feet 
between the mining activity and the adjoining use. Further, 
the Board of Commissioners may reduce non-modified 
setbacks by 50 percent when the mining activity adjoins a 
vacant parcel or farmland. 

((44))  Height 

Mined materials shall not be stored in excess of 25 feet in height. 

((55))  Access 

(a) For operations that generate more than five trips per peak 
hour, at least 200 feet of continuous pavement shall be 
required onsite starting at the point the access road 
intersects with a public street or highway unless such public 
street is not paved. Acceleration and deceleration lanes shall 
be required by the county when it determines, subject to 
input from the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, that such lanes will enhance public safety. All 
access roads should intersect with public streets at right 
angles, but in no case be less than 60 degrees. All streets and 
roads utilized to access the mining site shall be maintained 
free of dust and sediment and shall be properly graded and 
drained. 

49



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   4 

(b) Where two or more accesses to the mining operation exist, 
traffic shall be routed to the access having the least negative 
impact on adjoining properties. 

((66))  Vehicles 

All trucks hauling mined materials (i.e. sand, clay, topsoil) shall be 
covered with a tarpaulin. 

((77))  Hours of Operation 

In no case shall the hours of operation be beyond dawn to dusk, nor 
shall mining activity occur on Sundays. 

((88))  Refuse 

No bulk waste, hazardous waste, commercial waste, garbage, 
construction or demolition waste shall be placed on site. 

((99))  Dewatering 

Discharging of water from the mine site shall be permitted subject to 
obtaining a state permit.  The county may take random samples and 
have the results tested for settable solids, turbidity, and pH at the 
operators’ expense.  Such testing shall not exceed six tests per year. 

((1100))  Signage 

‘No Trespassing’ signs shall be posted around the site being mined at a 
minimum distance of 250 feet apart indicating that a mining operation 
is being conducted on the property. ‘No Trespassing’ signs indicating 
that a mining operation is being conducted on the site shall be spaced 
a minimum of 250 feet apart.   

((1111))  Reclamation 

Reclamation shall be conducted simultaneously with mining operations. 
Annual reclamation reports shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department within ten days of being filed with the State. 

((1122))  Overburden 

Overburden to be used for future reclamation shall be placed where it 
will not be disturbed by normal mining activities and shall be stabilized 
to reduce wind and water erosion. Use of overburden for earth berms 
is encouraged to reduce the impact of the mining operation on 
adjoining properties. 

((1133))  Drainage 

Drainage patterns shall not be altered so as to cause flooding off-site 
while the permit is valid and after reclamation. 

((1144))  Surrounding Wells 

No mining activities shall adversely affect surrounding in use wells.  A 
hydrological report as provided below shall be required and the board 
may consider that report in adjusting setbacks or imposing other 
conditions on the applicant.  Such conditions shall be designed to avoid 
adverse impacts on in use well owners, including but not limited to 
requiring monitoring wells, additional hydrological studies, or surety to 
protect in use well owners from loss.  Any person owning or 
operating a mining site in a manner that adversely affects an in use well 

50



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   5 

through contamination or diminution of groundwater shall provide the 
well owner with a replacement water supply of equal quantity and 
quality.  A rebuttal is permitted that contamination or diminution of 
water has been caused by the mining activity. 

((1155))  Expansion 

An expansion of an existing mining operation shall comply with the 
following procedures and additional standards: 

 (a)  Procedure 

(i) With approval of the Board of Commissioners Planning 
Director, additional area within the site can be mined 
provided previously mined areas are reclaimed with 
non-contaminated soils to the original ground elevation 
in accordance with state standards.  Setbacks 
established by these regulations shall be met at all 
times.  All reclaimed land shall be identified on a map 
recorded in the register of deeds. 

(ii)  With the approval of the Planning Director, an 
expansion of an existing mine operation not to exceed 
40 percent of the total site area can be mined.    

(iii)  In accordance with Section 2.3.14, the Board of 
Commissioners can approve an expansion of an 
existing mine operation not to exceed 50 percent of 
the total site area.   

(b)  Additional Standards 

((ii))  The existing mine has an active use permit and State 
permit. 

((iiii))  The existing mine has been in operation for a period 
of no less than five years. 

((iiiiii))  The existing mine has maintained compliance with all 
applicable state and local permit regulations for the 
past five years of operation. 

((iivv))  The cumulative total of the mine’s excavation area, 
including the requested expansion, shall not exceed 
50 percent of the total site area. All on-site CAMA 
and US Army Corps of Engineers designated 
wetlands and surface waters shall not be included in 
the total site area calculation.     

((vv))  All State mining permit modifications shall be 
obtained prior to any expansion activities being 
performed. 

((1166))  Expiration 

(a)  The use permit shall be valid for a period of ten years from 
the date it is granted or for a shorter duration as deemed 
appropriate by the Board of Commissioners. In the event the 
property owner desires to continue the mining operation 
thereafter, he shall again petition the Board of 
Commissioners for a new permit. 

51



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   6 

(b)  Discharging without proper state permits will result in 
initiating procedures to revoke the special use permit. 

(c)  If at any time a state agency suspends or revokes any permits 
it has issued for the mining operation, the revocation or 
suspension shall cause the use permit to become void until 
such permit is reinstated by the State. 

 
Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any sentence, 
clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held 
unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can 
be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (8/14/12) 
Mr. Klebitz explained what could be done with an excavated mine with the rules for a 
conservation subdivision. One possibility is that the excavated mine could be reclaimed as 
a recreational lake as part of the development of a conservation subdivision. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about the reclamation plan for the mine. 
 
Mr. Klebitz stated the county requires a reclamation plan be submitted along with the 
initial mining permit, as well as the state. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Clark moved to approve PB 12-15 as written due to its consistency with the 2006 
Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes 
orderly growth and development.  Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
 
Chairman Rorer opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve due to its consistency 
with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is 
reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 
growth and development. To also include that the SUP would 
run concurrent with the State Permit for existing mines, 
unless there is a violation.  Commissioner Etheridge 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

 
B) Chris Turner, Wildlife Resources Commission to discuss 

Coyotes in the County  
 
Chris Turner, WRC, District 1, Biologist, reviewed 
coexisting with coyotes. All 100 counties have coyotes.  

52



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   7 

They can be hunted year round.  He also reviewed preventing 
conflicts with coyotes. If a resident has a problem with a 
coyote they can contact the NC Wildlife Resources 
Commission on their web site for more information. 
 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, presentation on 
Currituck County Rural Center  

 
Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, reviewed the history of 
the Rural Center site and the amenities at the site for 
recreation.  They are now working on a Cultural Heritage 
Exhibit for the Rural Center. 
 
Tim Kirkpatrick, Rural Center Director, reviewed the many 
programs that the site offers. 
 

B) Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, recognizing the 
Board of Commissioners for their Outstanding 
Partnership with Cooperative Extension  

 
Cameron Lowe, Extension Director, stated that this award 
was presented to only 5 counties in the State. Ms. Lowe 
presented each Commissioner with an award. 
 
Commissioner Etheridge stated that he was proud to have 
accepted the award on behalf of the Commissioners at the 
NCACC State Conference. 
 

C) Update on the Department of Planning and Community 
Development  

 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the improvements 
staff is working on to improve the permitting process.  
Staff is working to simplify applications, with technology 
improvements and working with the Albemarle Regional Health 
Services Department to improve the process for septic tank 
permits. 
 

53



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   8 

Commissioner O’Neal commended the staff on working to 
improve the Department of Planning and Community 
Development. 
 

D) Update on the Moyock Small Area Plan  
 
Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the Moyock Small 
Area Plan and announced there would be a citizen meeting on 
September 24, 7:00 p.m., at the Moyock Library. Population 
in Moyock has increased more than any other area in the 
County, and staff needs citizen participation to determine 
needs for the area, such as recreation. 
 

New Business 
 
A) Consent Agenda: 

1. ITS Surplus Resolution 
2. Budget Amendments 
3. Appointments to the Local Firefighter's Relief 

Fund Board for Carova Beach, Corolla, Crawford 
and Knotts Island 

4. Resolution to surplus vehicles 
5. Resolution Celebrating the 300th Anniversary of 

Craven County 
6. Resolution Approval for Local Water Supply Plans 

for Currituck Water Systems 
7. Approval of September 4, 2012 Minutes 
8. Grant Ordinance for 2 year grant for clearing Hog 

Bridge Ditch 
 
Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N  

54



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   9 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on September 17, 2012  authorized the following, 
pursuant to GS 160A and 270(b), that the property listed below, be sold at auction or given 
to another governmental entity:  
    

Description Service Tag/Serial No. 
Asset 
Tag 

Item 
No. 

Dell Latitude D810 J12NW71 6064 G001 
Dell Latitude D810 CBD9L81 6051 G002 
Dell PowerEdge 2800 2GTM461 5970 G003 
Dell Optiplex GX260 DGDXT21 5698 G004 
Dell Optiplex GX280 72R8V71 6033 G005 
Dell Computer 2CLSL71 6417 G006 
Compaq Evo N1020V 9X35LDLZT1E9 5692 G007 
HP DesignJet 815mfp (C7780C plotter & Q1278A 
scanner) 

DK35752033 & 
DK36B1100P 5782 G008 

Netgear FS750 Switch FS70C32054182 5709 G009 
Netgear FS516 Switch FS56L32430005 NONE G010 
Dell Optiplex GX270 CMBGW41 5855 G011 
HP Compaq nx9010 2UA423P0XS 5862 G012 
HP Compaq nx9010 2UA442P2CS 5932 G013 
HP Compaq nx9010 CNF3480GQF 5802 G014 
Dell Optiplex GX270 JLBGW41 5850 G015 
Dell Dimension 2400 J9CS941 5811B G016 
Cisco Phone FCH11429755 NONE G017 
Cisco Phone FCH10228F3D NONE G018 
Dell Optiplex GX260 3BT0F21 5660 G019 
Dell Dimension 2400 J53JR41 5876B G020 
Dell Dimension 2400 5BCS941 5811D G021 
Dell Latitude D810 B62NW71 6067 G022 
Dell Optiplex GX620 7WN4S91 6189 G023 
HP Compaq nx9030 CNF4370YPT 5974 G024 
Dell Optiplex GX620 5RS8L81 6045 G025 
Dell Precision 370 5VMVW61 5966 G026 
Dell Optiplex GX280 53R8V71 6034 G027 
Dell Optiplex 755 1ZQ8LF1 6764 G028 
Netgear 16 Port Fast Ethernet Switch JS16143CB022740 NONE G029 
HP All in One printer CND892Q02W NONE G030 
HP Compaq nc6120 CNU5220DSS 5999 G031 
HP All in One printer CNF892R1SK NONE G032 
Dell Dimension 2400 4CCS941 5811I G033 
Dell Dimension 2400 8CCS941 5811J G034 
Gateway (Gates Foundation) Barco Lib 0023464565 5452 G035 
Gateway (Gates Foundation) Barco Lib 0024704886 5527 G036 
Dell Optiplex GX260 Barco Lib H35R121 5642 G037 
Dell Optiplex GX260 Barco Lib 1F4XT21 5703 G038 
Dell Optiplex GX260 Corolla Lib 9D4XT21 5704A G039 
Dell Optiplex GX260 Corolla Lib DD4XT21 5704C G040 
Dell Optiplex GX270 Barco Lib GZSFG31 5754 G041 

55



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   10 

Dell Optiplex GX270 Barco Lib JZSFG31 5755 G042 
Dell Optiplex GX270 Barco Lib 20TFG31 5756 G043 
Dell Optiplex GX270 Barco Lib 40TFG31 5757 G044 
Dell Optiplex GX270 7MBGW41 5853 G045 
Dell Optiplex GX260 5X70V21 5706 G046 
Dell Optiplex GX270 (refurb/replacement) D62F351 NONE G047 
Clone PC from Parker-Lowe (old jury PC) 422979 NONE G048 
DataMate old microfilm reader 2171935 2563 G049 
Acer Monitor (AcerView 34T) 9175402014 NONE G050 
Sonicwall Pro 3060 0006B10C8D28 5875 G051 
Sonicwall Pro 3060 0006B10D3250 6057 G052 
Panasonic CF-28 3DKYA06359 5771 G053 
Panasonic CF-28 3DKYA06474 5773 G054 
Panasonic CF-28 2JKYC02812 NONE G055 
Motorola VRM850 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SDS0613 NONE G056 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) cannot see serial number NONE G057 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) cannot see serial number NONE G058 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SBQ1175 NONE G059 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SBQ1172 NONE G060 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SBQ1173 NONE G061 
Motorola VRM650 Packet Radio (law enforcement) 508SBQ1171 NONE G062 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
29690-590000  Capital Outlay   $                225,000    

29390-499900  
Appropriated Fund 
Balance     $              225,000  

       
     $                225,000    $              225,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Fire Equipment Replacement Fund (29690) - To appropriate fund balance to 
purchase an E-One Custom Pumper for Knotts Island VFD as recommended by the 
Fire and EMS Advisory Board.  Total purchase price will be $457,520 per proposal 
dated 8/31/2012. 

Net Budget Effect: Emergency Vehicle Replacement Fund (29) - Increased by $225,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 

56



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   11 

       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
66888-532000  Supplies   $                    4,000    
66888-545000  Contract Services     $                  4,000  
       
     $                    4,000    $                  4,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

Walnut Island/Waterside Villages (68888) - Transfer funds for operating supplies 
need for this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Walnut Island Sewer (68) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
60808-514800  Fees Paid to Officials   $                    1,500    
60808-513000  Utilities     $                  1,500  
       
     $                    1,500    $                  1,500  
       
Explanation: 
 

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer (60808) - Transfer funds to appropriate funds to 
activate the Ocean Sands Advisory Board. 

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (60) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
50535-590001  800 MHz Project   $             2,000,000    

50390-495042  
T F - Transfer Tax Capital 
Fund    $           2,000,000  

       
     $             2,000,000    $           2,000,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

800 MHz Project (50535) - To increase appropriations in the multi-year fund for the 
transfer from Transfer Tax budgeted for this fiscal year for the 800 MHz project. 

57



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   12 

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $2,000,000. 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during 
its regularly scheduled meeting held on September 17, 2012  authorized the following, 
pursuant to GS 160A and 270(b), that the property listed below, be disposed of by 
auction on GovDeals: 
 

ASSET YEAR MAKE VIN# 
4377 1999 FORD –CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W5XX175704 
5401 2001 FORD –CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W51X109550 
5661 2002 DODGE – INTREPID 2B3HD46R72H268239 
5627 2003 FORD –CROWN VIC 2FAHP71W93X146189 
5963 2005 FORD –CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W65X137069 
6024 2005 JEEP – CHEROKEE 1J4GR48K75C641311 
5925 2005 JEEP – CHEROKEE 1J4GR48K95C549505 
4043 1997 FORD F150 TRUCK 1FTDF1723VND41691 
3439 1997 FORD F150 TRUCK 1FTDF17WXVNB73017 
5510 2002 FORD F150 TRUCK 1FTRX18WX2NA27441 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
County of Currituck reserves the right to reject any and all bids.  
 
 

Resolution Celebrating the 300th Anniversary of 
Craven County 

 
 
Whereas, Craven County was created in 1712 as Craven 
Precinct, extending into what is now eastern Tennessee; 
and  

Whereas, Craven County was the site of North Carolina's 
colonial capital, New Bern, and Tryon Palace, which served 
as the first permanent capitol of North Carolina and home 
to the family of the royal governor. Tryon Palace was also 
the site of the first sessions of the general assembly for 
the State of North Carolina following the revolution and 
housed the state governors until 1794; and 

Whereas, Craven County is home to the first American born 
Governor of North Carolina, Richard Dobbs Spaight, and the 
most recent Governor of North Carolina, Beverly Perdue; and 

58



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   13 

Whereas, the 300th anniversary of Craven County is being 
celebrated throughout the year with a variety of community 
generated learning opportunities; and 

Whereas, on September 22, 2012, coinciding with the 
anniversary of the start of the Tuscarora War, Craven 
County will celebrate its rich and diverse heritage at a 
countywide event that will  acknowledge the vital 
contributions of all its citizens, cities, towns and 
hamlets in the county's development.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners would like to recognize Craven County’s 
rich heritage on its 300th Anniversary. 

 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 

59



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   14 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Currituck County Board of Commissioners, North Carolina that 
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the 
following capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 
 
SECTION 1. The project authorized is to remove woody debris from Hog Bridge Ditch 
starting at South Gregory Rd toward Indiantown Creek.  Approximately 4000’ of canal 
will be cleared, which was blocked as a result of Hurricane Irene In August 2011. 
 
 
SECTION 2. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

 

     Stream Debris Removal Project - Grant 10,459$           

10,459$           

 
 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are available to complete this project: 
 

NCDA&CS Grant 10,459$            

10,459$            

 
 
SECTION 4. The Finance Director is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on 
the financial status of each project element delineated in Section 2 above. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within the fund as 
contained herein under the following conditions: 
 
a. He may transfer amounts between object line items within the fund up to 

One Thousand dollars ($1,000). 
 

 
SECTION 6.  CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

The County Manager is hereby authorized to execute contractual documents under 
the following conditions: 
 
a. He may execute contracts for construction or repair projects which do not 

require formal competitive bid procedures. 

60



September 17, 2012 BOC Meeting   15 

 
b. He may execute contracts for (1) purchases of apparatus, supplies, and 

materials, or equipment which are within the budgeted departmental 
appropriations; (2) leases of personal property for a duration of one year or less 
and within budgeted departmental appropriations; and (3) services which are 
within budgeted departmental appropriations. 
 

c. He may execute contracts, as the lessor or lessee of real property, which are of a 
duration of one year or less which are within the budgeted departmental 
appropriations. 

 
 

SECTION 7.  USE OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

The Budget Officer and the Finance Director shall use this capital project ordinance for 
administration of the budget and for the accounting system. 

 
B) Commissioner’s Report 

 
Commissioner Gilbert, commented on the Currituck Kids and 
Moyock Food Bank. 
 
Commissioner O’Neal commented on the 225th anniversary of 
the Constitution. He also discussed placing specific events 
on community signs and a good place would be to put one at 
the convenience center. 
 
Chairman Rorer, invited the public out to the Whalehead 
Club wine tasting event each Wednesday. 
  

C) County Manager’s Report 
 
Dan Scanlon, County Manager, stated that on October 5, 
there would be a meeting in Raleigh on the Mid-County 
Bridge. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 

 

61



Number TDA2013006

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-545000 Contract Services 1,520$                        
15390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 1,520$                      

1,520$                        1,520$                      

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 1st day of October, 2012 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

TourismRelated Expenditures (15447) - Increase appropriation to budget for  lawncare at the 
Jarvisburg Colored School.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) -Increased by $1,520.

62


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	12-16 Case Analysis
	12-16 Site Plan

	Consideration and Action:
	08-45 Case Analysis
	08-45 Applicant Request

	Consideration of Lease Agreement with College of the Albemarle for the Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center in Maple.
	Recommendation of award of bid for COA Apron
	Appointment to Ocean Sands Water & Sewer District Advisory Board
	Board
	OS Adv Bd Appt Form

	Approval of ABC Board Travel Policy pursuant to 18B-700(g2)which is the same as the County Travel Policy
	Firemen's Relief Fund - Moyock VFD
	Budget Amendments
	Approval of Change Order #1 for $6,980 for the Currituck Community Park Roads & Infrastructure
	Approval of September 17, 2012 Minutes
	Budget Amendment



